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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
 
 

BUREAU OF CONTRACTS, GRANTS AND PROCUREMENT  
MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

325 West Gaines Street 

332 Turlington Building 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400 

Addendum #1 

BID NO.:  ITN 2012-37 
 

TRAINING DISTRICTS ON METHODS OF EVALUATING 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

MARCH 22, 2012 

 
This addendum is being issued to provide the Answers to Questions submitted timely by 
vendors during the Question and Answers period.  

Please be advised all questions are keyed as submitted. 

All Florida Business Services, Inc. 

Q1:  Can you please advise if there is a budget for the above referenced ITN? 

A1:    The Florida Department of Education is seeking the best value for the goods and services 
delineated in the ITN. 

Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 

Q2:  HMH/The Leadership and Learning Center is currently working with LEAs in the State of 
Florida. Is there a conflict of interest concern here if we bid on this ITN, that will jeopardize our 
current work or future work with LEAs in the State? 
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A2:  The General Counsel for the Florida Department of Education has determined that there is 
no conflict of interest based on Houghton Mifflin Harcourt’s current work with Florida’s LEAs.  
It is impossible to predetermine the effect of HMH’s involvement in current projects on projects 
that may be necessary in the future. 

Mid-continent Research for Education and Learning (McREL) 

Q3:  Is the Florida Department of Education expecting the vendor to provide any of the content 
(e.g., educational leadership strategies, geometry) for professional development or do we only 
support creation of the modules, focusing on creating, monitoring, and evaluation?  

A3:  The Florida Department of Education is NOT expecting the vendor to provide content. 

Q4:  Is the continuous progress component limited to elements for beginning teachers and for 
training and retaining instructional coaches? 

A4:  No. 

Q5:  What do we need to know about Florida’s system to select vendors for a possible operating 
system? 

A5:  The Florida Department of Education selects vendors pursuant to Chapter 287, Florida 
Statutes.  If an operating system is required, the Department prefers Microsoft SQL.   

Q6:  Please clarify who will create the manuals and facilitator guides. 

A6:  LEAs will be responsible for creating their own manuals and facilitator guides, but the 
successful respondent may provide guidance on contents and organization. 

Q7:  What kinds of data are available about practitioner proficiency that can be used as outcome 
measures? 

A7:  LEAs will have data based on observations of teacher and principal practice.   

Q8:  Please clarify what is meant by a professional development event? 

A8:  A professional development event, for the purposes of the ITN, is any purposeful, targeted 
continuing education undertaken by a teacher or principal to improve the performance of 
students, individually or school-wide.  The professional development may be provided one-on-
one, online, via collegial learning teams, or in classroom settings.  Professional development 
events may be one-time occurrences, on-going, or recurring events.  In addition, targeted 
professional development includes “lesson study” as it is undertaken collaboratively by groups of 
teachers. 
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Q9:  What kinds of student data would we have access to? Achievement data only? Benchmark 
assessments? 

A9:  LEAs and the Florida Department of Education have data regarding student growth 
measures. 

Q10:  Planning is not specified in the scope of work. What are the specific requirements for this 
component? 

A10:  The first deliverable required of the Contractor, within 10 days of contract execution, is a 
comprehensive work plan that includes deliverables, delivery dates, and evidence of completion 
for each deliverable.   

Q11:  Is the continuous progress component meant to be a separate learning opportunity or 
should it be integrated with planning, implementing and evaluating? 

A11:  The Department anticipates the integration of continuous improvement in all aspects of the 
deliverables. 

CIC Planning Group, Inc. 

Q12:  Does FLDOE anticipate awarding one or multiple contracts under this ITN?  If multiple, 
how will the scope of work be divided among the Contractors? 

A12:  The Florida Department of Education would prefer to award one contract under this ITN; 
however, it reserves the right to award multiple contracts.  Respondents may partner with other 
entities to submit a single response.  If multiple contracts are awarded, the division of the scope 
of work would depend on the substance of the responses to the ITN. 

Q13:  Is technical assistance expected to be tailored to each LEA involved with RTT or is it 
FLDOE’s intention that the Contractor develop and vet the methods through an intensive process 
with a smaller group before providing less intensive training to all RTT Districts? 

A13:  The Florida Department of Education expects that each participating LEA will be served 
to its satisfaction.  Our experience suggests that large portions of the deliverables will be 
applicable to all participants; however, some LEAs may require unique specific assistance in 
addition to deliverables used statewide. 

Q14:  Are all RTT Districts required to participate? 

A14:  Participating LEAs may be found at http://www.fldoe.org/arra/pdf/topapp.pdf (pg. 37).  
Other LEAs may also participate. 

Q15:  Is the Contractor responsible for selecting and budgeting for all training site expenses 
incurred during the project? 

http://www.fldoe.org/arra/pdf/topapp.pdf�
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A15:  The Contractor will be responsible for securing and paying for approved sites and 
corresponding set-up requirements.  The Contractor will also be responsible for the production 
and distribution of approved materials used under the Contract.  LEAs will be responsible for 
paying travel costs for their respective employees. 

Q16:  Is FLDOE able to provide detailed information on the instructional practice, leadership 
practice, student achievement approaches, and use of supportive technologies used by each RTT 
District, or is that discovery expected to be part of the scope of work? 

A16:  The Florida Department of Education expects respondents to be aware of and conversant 
in these issues. 

Q17:  Is the expectation from FLDOE that different models will be developed for LEAs based on 
their use of Marzano, Danielson, or other instructional practice assessments? 

A17:  The Department’s experience suggests that large portions of the deliverables will be 
applicable to all participants; however, some LEAs may require unique specific assistance in 
addition to deliverables used statewide. 

Q18:  With respect to intellectual property, the contract standard terms and conditions in 
attachment 7 indicate that "Anything by whatsoever designation it may be known, that is 
produced by, or developed in connection with, this Contract shall become the exclusive property 
of the State of Florida", and "Neither the Contractor ... shall have any proprietary interest in the 
product", and goes on further to indicate that this "shall not apply to any pre-existing software, or 
other work of authorship used by Contractor ... which exists as a work independently of the 
Deliverable ...". 

a. How and by whom is/will the determination that a work "exists independently of the     
Deliverable" made? 

b. What documentation is required/expected to support the Contractor’s assertion that a 
particular part or portion of the Deliverable is such a pre-existing work? 

c. What rights of license will the State of Florida expect to be granted in such a pre-existing 
work? 

d. With regards to the third paragraph in section 3.1, will these exclusions of pre-existing 
and/or proprietary work also be recognized by the U.S. Department of Education? 

A18: 

a.  The General Counsel for the Florida Department of Education makes this determination. 
b.  The General Counsel for the Florida Department of Education makes this determination, 

however, it is generally expected that proprietary work will be properly licensed. 
c. The General Counsel for the Florida Department of Education makes this determination, 

however, the Department prefers that in the case of a license to use proprietary materials, 
a perpetual license be issued that may be non-transferable.   
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d. It is the understanding of the Department that the U.S. Department of Education will 
recognize proprietary work that is recognized as such within a contract.   

Q19:  In section 3.1 the ITN states "The Department will also accept proposals that include such 
options as co-ownership". 

a.  How might the rights of ownership between FDOE and the Contractor (as well as the 
U.S. Department of Education), as outlined in section 3.1 and attachment 7, be modified 
in light of a proposed "co-ownership"? 

b. Can FDOE provide example(s) of contractual language/stipulations used in prior 
instances where co-ownership was included as part of a proposal? 

A19:   

a.  While FDOE would recognize a co-ownership agreement, there is no indication that it 
would be recognized by the U.S. Department of Education for materials developed under 
the contract.   

b. Prospective Contractors should look at procurements previously issued by the 
Department under Race to the Top.  Contracts prepared from the procurements may be 
requested from the Bureau of Contracts, Grants, and Procurement. 

Public Consulting Group 

Q20:  What is the expectation of the extent of online access to PD design guidelines and PD 
evaluation methods at what point in the project? 

A20:  ITN 2012-37 does not require online access to design guidelines and evaluation methods.   

Q21:  Is it expected that there would be an online tool to help districts assess planned PD 
offerings against criteria and then assess implementation and then assess impact? 

A21:  Delivery tools and methods are solely left to the discretion of the respondent. 

Q22:  How many districts does the department see as being involved in Year 2? By Year 3? Is 
participation voluntary? 

A22:  Although participation is voluntary, the Department expects all districts to be involved. 

Q23:  Is the vendor expected to provide actual PD content or just criteria against which LEAs 
should plan and implement PD that is either locally designed or purchased from other 
vendors/providers? 

A23:  The Florida Department of Education is NOT expecting the vendor to provide content. 



ITN 2012-37 Training Districts on Methods of Evaluating Professional Development                   Page 6of 7 

 

Q24:  Is it up to the vendor to determine what fidelity of implementation looks like for the 
evaluation of impact? 

A24:  The Contractor(s) would work cooperatively with the Florida Department of Education on 
this determination, if fidelity of implementation for the evaluation of impact is proposed within 
the response. 

Q25:  Is the vendor expected to incorporate FL state PD content currently available? 

A25:  The Contractor(s) would work cooperatively with the Florida Department of Education on 
this determination, if incorporation of existing PD content is proposed within the response. 

Q26:  Can some of the training be technical training on calculation of effect sizes and integration 
with FL requirements for teacher and principal evaluation? Is the vendor expected to develop a 
program to assist with calculating these? 

A26:  The Contractor(s) would work cooperatively with the Florida Department of Education on 
this determination, if effect sizes and their calculation are proposed within the response. 

Q27:  Can the dissemination plan include being part of already planned state DOE events and 
trainings over the next two years? 

A27:  Yes. 

Pearson 

Q28:  We assume that the scope of work required for ITN 2012-37 is not connected with or not 
the implementation of, the Department’s existing Job-Embedded Teacher Preparation Program 
contract/grant, and therefore a vendor providing services under the Job-Embedded Teacher 
Preparation program contract/grant would be eligible to provide services under ITN 2012-37.  Is 
this correct?  If not, please clarify how ITN section 6.16 is implicated with respect to the Job-
Embedded Teacher Preparation program contract/grant. 

A28:    The scope of work required for ITN 2012-37 is not connected with nor is it an 
implementation of the Department’s existing Job-Embedded Teacher Preparation Program 
contract/grant and therefore section 6.16 does not preclude contractors on the Job-Embedded 
project from contracting for ITN 2012-37.   

It should be noted that the Department anticipates that other Race to the Top contracts/grants 
may implicate section 6.16 of ITN 2012-37 to include but not limited to ITN 2011-19 
Development of an English/Language Arts Formative Assessment System  and ITN 2012-13 
Building LEA-Level Capacity for Turnaround in Rural LEAs Re-Bid. 
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Q29:  This effort involves providing substantial program review and evaluation services related 
to professional development, versus professional development itself.  Would a winning bidder 
for this effort be precluded from delivering PD products and services to the LEAs involved, if it 
was awarded this work?  Will the LEAs perceive a conflict even if the FL DOE does not? 

A29:  The Contractor would not be precluded from delivering PD products to Florida LEAs.  
The Department cannot predict the perceptions of the LEAs. 

Q30:  Does the Department intend to award to only a single bidder, or is award to multiple 
bidders a possibility? 

A30:  The Florida Department of Education would prefer to award one contract under this ITN; 
however, it reserves the right to award multiple contracts.  Respondents may partner with other 
entities to submit a single response.   

Potential proposers have 72 hours from posting of addenda to protest the 
requirements of each addendum. Failure to file a protest within the time 
prescribed in Section 120.57(3), or failure to post the bond or other security 
required by law within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver 
of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 

YOUR REPLY WILL NOT BE COMPLETE WITHOUT THIS DOCUMENT 
SIGNED AND INCLUDED! 

 
Vendor Name – written:            
 
Authorized Signature:            
 
Mailing Address:             
 
City, State & Zip Code:            
 
Telephone:     Facsimile:     E-Mail Address:     
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